

BY-LAWS
OF
ORMOND CONDOMINIUM CLUB, INC.
A CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION

1. Identity. These are the By-Laws of ORMOND CONDOMINIUM CLUB, INC., herein called the "Association", a non-profit Florida corporation provided for in Chapter 711, Section 12, Florida Statutes, and organized pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes, for the purpose of administering ORMOND CONDOMINIUM CLUB, INC., a condominium of land and being situate in Volusia County, Florida, to-wit:

The North 490' of the South 980', excepting therefrom the South 230.33' thereof, of that portion of Fractional Section 2 lying Easterly of Ocean Shore Boulevard, an 80' street as now laid out, Township 14 South, Range 32 East, Volusia County, Florida, excepting therefrom the following described property; Begin at a point in the North line of the South 230.33' of the North 490' of the South 980' of said Fractional Section 2, said point being a distance of 216.5' East of the intersection of said line with the Easterly line of Ocean Shore Boulevard; thence North and at right angles to last line, a distance of 8.0' to a point; thence East and parallel to the South line of Fractional Section 2, a distance of 100' more or less to the shore line of the Atlantic Ocean; thence Southerly along said shore line, a distance of 8' more or less to the North line of the South 230.33' of the North 490' of the South 980' of said Fractional Section 2; thence West a distance of 100' more or less to the point of beginning.

1.1 Office. The office of the Association shall be at 935 North Ocean Shore Boulevard, Apartment 106, Ormond Beach, Florida.

1.2 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.

1.3 Seal. The seal of the corporation shall bear the name of the corporation, the word "Florida", the words "Corporation not for profit" and the year of incorporation.

2. Members.

2.1 Qualification. The members of the Association shall consist of all of the record owners of apartments.

2.2 Change of Membership. After receiving the approval of the Association as required in the Declaration of Condominium, change of membership in the Association shall be established by recording in the Public Records of Volusia County, Florida, a deed or other instrument establishing a record title to an apartment in the condominium and the delivery to the Association of a certified copy of such instrument, the owner designated by such instrument thereby becoming a member of the Association. The membership of the prior owner shall be thereby terminated.

2.3 Voting Rights. The owner of each unit shall be entitled to one (1) vote as a member of the Association, and the manner of exercising such voting rights shall be determined by these By-Laws. The term "majority" as used in these By-Laws and other condominium instruments in reference to voting by apartment owners, Association members, and Board of Directors means more than fifty (50%) per cent.

2.4 Designation of Voting Representative. If an apartment is owned by one person his right to vote shall be established by the record title to his apartment. If an apartment is owned by more than one person, the person entitled to cast the vote for the apartment shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record owners of the apartment and filed with the Secretary of the Association. If an apartment is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the apartment shall be designated by a certificate of appointment signed by the President or Vice-

President and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the apartment concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote of an apartment may be revoked by any owner there.

2.5 Approval or Disapproval of Matters. Whenever the decision of an apartment owner is required upon any matter, whether or not the subject of an Association meeting, such decision shall be expressed by the same person who would cast the vote of such owner if at an Association meeting, unless the joinder of record owners is specifically required by the Declaration or these By-Laws.

2.6 Restraint Upon Assignment of Shares in Assets. The share of a member in the funds and assets of the Association cannot be assigned, hypothecated or transferred in any manner except as an appurtenance to his apartment.

3. Members' Meetings.

3.1 Annual Members' Meetings. The annual members' meeting shall be held at the office of the Association at 10:00 A.M. Eastern Standard Time, on the third Saturday in February of each year for the purpose of electing Directors and of transacting any other business authorized to be transacted by the members; provided, however, if that day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next day. The annual meeting may be waived by a unanimous agreement of the members in writing.

3.2 Special Members' Meetings. Special members' meetings shall be held whenever called by a majority of the Board of Directors and must be called by such Directors upon receipt of a written request from members entitled to cast seventy-five (75%) per cent of the votes of the entire membership.

3.3 Notice of All Members' Meetings. Notice of all members' meetings stating the time and place and the objects for which the meeting is called shall be given unless waived in writing. Such notice shall be in writing and furnished to each member at his address as it appears on the books

of the Association and shall be mailed not less than ten (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the meeting. Proof of such mailing shall be given by affidavit of the person giving the notice. Notice of meeting may be waived before or after meetings.

3.4 Quorum. A quorum at member's meetings shall consist of persons entitled to cast a majority of the votes of the Association. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the members, except when approval by a greater number of members is required by the Declaration of Condominium or these By-Laws. The joinder of a member in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such member for the purpose of determining a quorum.

3.5 Proxies. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies may be made by any person entitled to vote and shall be valid only for the particular meeting designated therein and must be filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

3.6 Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.

3.7 Order of Business. The order of business at annual members' meetings, and as far as practical at all other members' meetings, shall be:

- (a) Calling of the roll and certifying of proxies.
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- (c) Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes.
- (d) Reports of ^{manager} ~~officers~~.
- (e) ~~Reports of Committees.~~
- (f) Election of Directors.
- (g) Unfinished Business.

(h) New Business.

(i) Adjournment.

4. Board of Directors.

4.1 Membership. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of no less than three (3) Directors. A Director need not be a person entitled to cast a vote in the Association.

4.2 Election of Directors.

(a) Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by a majority of the owners present at the annual meeting of the members of the Association, and entitled to vote.

(b) Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies on the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the remaining Directors.

(c) Any Director may be removed by concurrence of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Association at a special meeting of the members called for that purpose. The vacancy on the Board of Directors so created shall be filled by the members of the Association at the same meeting.

(d) Provided, however, that until the Developer has closed the sales of all the units in the condominium, until he elects to terminate his control or until June 1, 1973, whichever occurs first, all Directors shall be designated by the Developer, need not be members of the Association, and shall not be subject to removal by members as elsewhere provided.

4.3 Term. The term of each Directors' service shall extend until the next annual meeting of the members and thereafter until his successor is duly elected and qualified, or until he is removed in the manner elsewhere provided.

4.4 Organization Meeting. The organization meeting of a newly elected Board of Directors shall be held within ten

(10) days of their election at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the meeting at which they were elected, and no further notice of the organization meeting shall be necessary.

4.5 Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Directors. Notice of regular meetings shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph at least three (3) days prior to the day named for such meeting.

4.6 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Directors may be called by the President and must be called by the Secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the Directors. Not less than three (3) days notice of the meeting shall be given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting.

4.7 Waiver of Notice. Any Director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice.

4.8 Quorum. A quorum at Directors' meetings shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the act of the Board of Directors, except where approval by a greater number of Directors is required by the Declaration of Condominium or these By-Laws.

4.9 Adjourned Meetings. If at any meetings of the Board of Directors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.

4.10 Joinder in Meeting by Approval of Minutes. The joinder of a Director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such Director for the purpose of determining a quorum.

4.11 Presiding Officer. The presiding officer of Directors' meetings shall be the President. In the absence of

the President, the Directors present shall designate one of their number to preside.

4.12 Directors' Fees. Directors' fees, if any, shall be determined by the members of the Association; provided, Directors designated by the Developer shall never under any circumstances be entitled to Directors' fees.

5. Powers and Duties of Board of Directors. All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under the Condominium Act, Declaration of Condominium and these By-Laws shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, its agents, contractors or employees, subject only to approval by apartment owners when such is specifically required. Such powers and duties of the Directors shall include but not be limited to the following, subject, however, to the provisions of the Declaration of Condominium and these By-Laws:

5.1 Assess. To make and collect assessments against members to defray the costs and expenses of the condominium.

5.2 Disburse. To use the proceeds from assessments in the exercise of its powers and duties.

5.3 Maintain. To maintain, repair, replace and operate the condominium property.

5.4 Insure. To purchase insurance upon the condominium property and insurance for the protection of the Association and its members.

5.5 Reconstruct. To reconstruct improvements after casualty and further improve the condominium property.

5.6 Regulate. To make and amend reasonable rules and regulations respecting the use of the property in the condominium in the manner provided by the Declaration of Condominium.

5.7 Approve. To approve or disapprove of the transfer, mortgage and ownership of apartments in the manner provided by the Declaration of Condominium.

5.8 Management Contract. To contract for the maintenance, management or operation of condominium property and

to delegate to the manager all powers and duties of the Association except such as are specifically required by the Declaration of Condominium or those By-Laws to have approval of the Board of Directors or the membership of the Association. No such management contracts shall be construed to be invalid by reason of the Association's delegation or assignment of its rights, duties, privileges or responsibilities as set forth in the Condominium Act or Declaration. Such contract for the maintenance, management, or operation of condominium property shall be subject to cancellation at any time subsequent to the time any individual apartment owners assume control of their association by a vote of no less than seventy-five (75%) per cent of said individual unit owners.

5.9 Payment of Liens. To pay taxes and assessments which are liens against any part of the condominium other than individual apartments and the appurtenances thereto, and to assess the same against the apartments subject to such liens.

5.10 Enforce. To enforce by legal means provisions of the Condominium Act, the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation, the By-Laws and the regulations for the use of the property in the condominium.

5.11 Utilities. To pay the cost of all power, water, sewer and other utility services rendered to the condominium and not billed to owners of individual apartments.

5.12 Employment. To employ personnel for reasonable compensation to perform the services required for proper administration of the purposes of the Association.

6. Officers.

6.1 Officers and Election. The executive officers of the Association shall be a President, who shall be a Director, a Vice-President, who shall be a Director, a Treasurer, a Secretary and an Assistant Secretary, all of whom shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and who may be pre-emptorily removed by vote of the Directors at any meeting. Any person may hold two or more offices except that the President shall not also be the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors shall from time to time elect such other officers and

designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find necessary to properly manage the affairs of the Association.

6.2 President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of President of an Association, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he may in his discretion determine appropriate, to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. He shall serve as chairman of all Board and members' meetings.

6.3 Vice-President. The Vice-President shall in the absence or disability of the President exercise the powers and perform the duties of the President. He shall also generally assist the President and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the Directors.

6.4 Secretary and Assistant Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Directors and the members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and Directors and other notices required by law. He shall keep the records of the Association, except those of the Treasurer, and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Secretary of an Association and as may be required by the Directors or the President. The Assistant Secretary shall perform duties of the Secretary when the Secretary is absent. The duties of the Secretary may be fulfilled by a manager employed by the Association.

6.5 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities and evidences of indebtedness. He shall keep the books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices and provide for collection of assessments; and he shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Treasurer. The duties of the Treasurer may be fulfilled by a manager employed by the Association.

6.6 Compensation. The compensation, if any, of all officers shall be fixed by the members at their annual meeting. No officer who is a designee of the Developer shall receive any compensation for his services as such.

6.7 Indemnification of Directors and Officers. Every Director and every officer of the Association shall be indemnified

by the Association against all expenses and liabilities, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon him in connection with any proceeding to which he may be a party or in which he may become involved by reason of his being or having been a Director or officer of the Association, whether or not he is a Director or officer at the time such expenses are incurred, except in such cases wherein the Director or officer is adjudged guilty of willful misfeasance or malfeasance in the performance of these duties; provided that in the event of a settlement, the indemnification herein shall apply only when the Board of Directors approves such settlement and reimbursement as being for the best interests of the Association. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which such Director or officer may be entitled.

7. Fiscal Management. The provisions for fiscal management of the Association set forth in the Declaration of Condominium shall be supplemented by the following provisions:

7.1 Accounts. The receipts and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classifications as shall be appropriate:

(a) Current Expense. Current expense shall include all receipts and expenditures to be made within the year for which the receipts are budgeted and may include a reasonable allowance for contingencies and working funds. The balance in this fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the assessments for current expense for the succeeding year or to fund reserves.

(b) Reserve for Deferred Maintenance. Reserve for deferred maintenance shall include funds for maintenance items which occur less frequently than annually.

(c) Reserve for Replacement. Reserve for replacement shall include funds for repair or replacement required because of damage, depreciation or obsolescence.

(d) Betterments. Reserve to be used for capital expenditures for additional improvements or additional personal property that will be part of the common elements.

7.2 Budget. The Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for each calendar year which shall include the estimated funds

required to defray the current expenses and may provide funds for the foregoing reserves.

7.3 Assessments. Assessments against the apartment owners for their shares of the items of the budget shall be made in advance on or before December 20 preceding the year for which the assessments are made. Such assessments shall be due in twelve (12) equal monthly payments, one of which shall come due on the first day of each month of the year for which the assessments are made. If an annual assessment is not made as required, an assessment shall be presumed to have been made in the amount of the last prior assessment and monthly payments thereon shall be due upon the first day of each month until changed by an amended assessment. In the event the annual assessment proves to be insufficient, the budget and assessments may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors. The unpaid assessment for the remaining portion of the calendar year for which the amended assessment is made shall be due on the first day of the month next succeeding the month in which such amended assessment is made or as otherwise provided by the Board of Directors. The first assessment shall be determined by the Board of Directors of the Association.

7.4 Acceleration of Assessment Installments Upon Default. If an apartment owner shall be in default in the payment of an installment upon an assessment, the Board of Directors may accelerate the remaining installments of the assessment upon notice to the apartment owner, and then the unpaid balance of the assessment shall become due upon the date stated in the notice, but not less than ten (10) days after the delivery of the notice to the apartment owner, or if such notice be by registered or certified mail, not less than twenty (20) days after the mailing, whichever shall first occur.

7.5 Depository. The depository of the Association will be such banks in Volusia County, Florida, as shall be designated from time to time by the Directors and in which the withdrawal monies from such accounts shall be only by checks signed by such persons as authorized by the Directors. Provided, however, that the provisions of a management agreement between the Association and a manager relative to the subject matter of this section shall supersede the provisions hereof.

7.6 Audit. An audit of the accounts of the Association, if required by proper action of either a majority of the voting members, or of the Board of Directors, shall be made annually by a certified public accountant, and a copy of the audit report shall

be furnished to each member not later than April 1 of the year following the year for which the audit is made.

7.7 Fidelity Bonds. Fidelity bonds may be required by the Board of Directors from all persons handling or responsible for Association funds. The amount of such bonds shall be determined by the Directors. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association.

8. Parliamentary Rules. Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association meetings when not in conflict with the Declaration of Condominium or these By-Laws.

9. Amendment. The By-Laws may be amended in the manner set forth in the Declaration.

The foregoing were adopted as The By-Laws of ORMOND CONDOMINIUM CLUB, INC., a condominium corporation and a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Florida, at the first meeting of the Board of Directors on January 18, 1972.

Charles T. Wells

CHARLES T. WELLS, Secretary

APPROVED:

Gene H. Godebold

GENE H. GODEBOLD, President

FILED FOR RECORD
RECORDS SECTION
1391
602
JAN 20 1972

Gene H. Godebold